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LNF Dixie Fire RFP Written Response to Proposal Questions 
Request for Proposal to Provide National Environmental Policy Act Services 

Posting Time & Date: Friday December 16, 2022 by 12:00pm 
 
 
Q1A:  Can GBI provide more clarity around the ‘TBD’ for baseline data collection/fieldwork/survey so our 

response best aligns with your expectations?  
 
Q1B:  Should the consultant team include only wildlife, botany, and aquatics surveys necessary to reach a 

NEPA decision, or should the consultant also include protocol-level, pre-implementation surveys that 
may be needed after the NEPA decision? 

 
A1(A/B): LNF expects consultants will work as project leaders and build an ID team to answer questions 
to get project from Proposed Action (PA) to implementation. Survey needs will be determined with ID 
team, with exception of archaeology, which has 23,262 acres needing survey pre-decision.  
 
The full gamut of ID team specialists should be included, to the greatest extent possible. GBI incorrectly 
identified archaeology survey needs as Class III pedestrian-level surveys in the RFP, and should just be 
described as “archaeological surveys”. The list in the “options” section of the RFP is not all-inclusive. As 
for cost, during the proposal evaluation process, GBI equalizes the values of the base bid (not including 
options). Options should be communicated as cost per unit (per field day or per acre), so comparison of 
options can be evaluated equally. 

 
Q1C:  If post-decision / pre-implementation surveys are required, can you provide any guidance on the 

existing survey coverage and number of acres that may need protocol-level surveys? 
 

A1(C): 23,262 acres need to be surveyed for archaeology pre-decision; LNF is not aware of acreage needs for 
other disciplines. Post-decision, pre-implementation survey needs: Frank (FS) says LNF staff will survey layout 
boundaries and accessibility. FS doesn’t foresee botany, archaeology, etc. surveys, though sometimes things 
come up. This is more of a “traditional EA,” where all resource surveys will be done prior to the administrator 
making a decision.  The only potential post-decision / pre-implementation survey for archaeology is if an area 
needs to be surveyed post-treatment, due to inaccessibility, but that will be by LNF staff. 

 
Q2:  As we are working to develop a responsive and compliant proposal, a question has come up. Can a 

Cover/Back page, TOC, Cover Letter, and the resumes of key staff be provided within the Technical 
Proposal but outside of the 15-page maximum requirement? 

 
A2: All pages of the technical proposal are 8.5 x 11. The single page cover letter, a single cover page, a 
table of content (if provided), resumes and/or vitae of key staff as well as past performance information 
does not count towards the 15-page technical proposal page limit. 

 
Q3: It is hard to develop a budget when you don't have a complete scope defined (TBD). Why would you not go 

with an RFQ? 
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A3: Under existing GBI Procurement Policy, GBI’s procurement process does not have an RFQ process 
available, as it was specifically designed for forestry work with a full and open competition abound vendors. 
Existing structure of GBI’s agreement with R5 Forest Service requires compliance with federal procurement 
standards. This may change in the future. 

 
Q4:  Can LNF clarify if there has been any post-fire data collected that would be available and if the intent is to 

conduct field surveys only on FS land (private included in RFP)?  Thanks! 
 

A4: As indicated by the FS, very little collected on the ground yet. What has been collected has been 
predominantly remote-sensed data and GIS analyses. The FS will be sticking with FS land on this RFP, but 
cross-boundary work will be considered in the future; no private land is within the bounds of this project, only 
adjacent. All archaeology acreage needs to be surveyed (see Question 1B above). FS will provide all data 
available from previous archaeology surveys, site records and shapefiles. 

 
Q5:   Question about schedule: One (1) year from contract to decision seems ambitious. What is FS availability 

during project?  
 

A5: As indicated by the FS, the FS is short-staffed across the board, but specialized staff for document review is 
a top priority, so don’t anticipate challenges with staff availability to review documents and stick to timeline. 

 
Q6:  Do the 23,262 acres of inventory and EA analysis include National Register Historic Places (NRHP) evaluations?  
 

A6: Recommendations will be needed, but NRHP evaluations will not be required. 
 
Q7:  Does LNF have a HIP (heritage implementation plan) or is it working towards one? 
 

A7: LNF just signed on a Detail Forest Archaeologist, but have not built a HIP for the project, as they may not 
be able to satisfy the role.  LNF has not moved towards any efforts to utilize the National Phased PA, nor have 
they built a HIP for this project. There is not currently a permanent Forest Archaeologist available to complete 
a HIP, though they would like to begin the process in the near future. 

 
Q8: Was there a BAER conducted, and can that be shared prior to proposal deadline? 
 

A8: A post-fire assessment and BAER have both been completed, just no ground data surveyed. Those 
documents may be available to the public, and will be shared as soon as Frank is able to confirm. 

 
Q9:  Would all surveys (e.g., bio/botany/archaeology) need to be completed and included in the specialist reports? 

Is the May 26 due date for review by FS or to be sent to resource agencies (e.g., USFWS and SHPO)?  
 
A9: May 26 is the date reports are due to FS for review. For archaeology, SHPO doesn’t need to be consulted 
unless potential for adverse effect. If no issues, LNF will just provide project info to SHPO at end of reporting. A 
BE and BA would be completed, and USFWS consultation could be happening concurrently. All surveys would 
need to be completed and approved by FS specialists prior to June 26, when EA would be available to the 
public. 

 
Q10:  Is the project footprint the Dixie Fire WUI and the WUI expansion area? 

 
A10: Yes, the project area includes the WUI area and the area where fire could be approaching WUI from (the 
expansion area). Map referenced is Figure A.1.1, page A-4 in RFP. 

 
Q11:  Is LNF using the regional hazard tree removal EA and will this tie into the project? 
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A11: Yes, this project will be including the hazard tree removal, for which on the ground surveys have been 
completed. Jake (FS) is still trying to get forest-wide concurrence/direction on details, as they don’t yet have an 
answer as to whether those areas will be covered by R5 effort, so may not have to be included in this project. 
Currently, the forest is in a gray area because NEPA hasn’t been signed yet. Hazard trees and public safety are 
highest priority, and the R5 regional office is optimistic that a signature is coming in next week or so. Once this 
is done, the forest can decide on how to proceed with this R5 effort. Consultants can assume that this decision 
is in place and won’t be part of project. If this isn’t the case, hazard tree details can be added as a change order 
in the future. Any changes in survey needs due to hazard tree efforts will be provided to consultants. 

 
 


